CITY OF SOUTH AMBOY
PLANNING BOARD
REGULAR MEETING/MINUTES
August 26, 2020

Members present:  Mary Szaro, Scott Kominkiewicz, Holly Hughes, George Baranowski, Jorge
Gonzalez-Gomez, Janet Kern, Thomas Kelly, Steven Giarratano

Members absent: Brian McLaughlin, Mayor Fred A. Henry, Catherine Corey
Also present: Jason C. Valetutto, P.E., P.P., James E. Stahl, Esq.
Chairwoman Szaro called this meeting to order.

This Meeting of the City of South Amboy Planning/Zoning Board is being held in accordance
with the Executive Orders of the Governor of New Jersey and regulations enacted pursuant to
such Orders which authorize the conducting of this meeting by telephonic and/or video access
by board members, applicants, professionals, and the public. It is requested that any person
who wishes to be heard on any matter wait for the Chairwomen to announce that the matter is
open for public comments. All persons will be given an opportunity to be heard.

Notice of this meeting has been provided under “The Open Public Meeting Act of New Jersey”
by advertisement published in the Home News Tribune, on the City of South Amboy
Planning/Zoning Board website, and by posting on the information board at City Hall.

Roll call was taken at this time.

Motion by Janet Kern, seconded by Jorge Gonzales-Gomez to accept the Minutes of the July 22,
2020 meeting. 7-0, 1 abstention.

Chairwoman Szaro then reviewed the evening’s agenda.

Completeness Committee

Application # 403-20 - Center SA, LLC

The application for Center SA, LLC, Planning Board application #403-19, has been reviewed for
completeness by AJV Engineering, Inc in a letter dated August 7, 2020. The Completeness
Committee makes a motion recommending that the findings in AJV Engineering, Inc. letter be
accepted. The application is deemed complete subject to the applicant complying in total with
the planning board consultant’s review letter, including but not limited to, payment of all fees.
Upon compliance, a public hearing date will be assigned to the applicant. In the event the



applicant does not fully comply with the terms of the Board Consultant’s review letter, it shall
remain incomplete until all items have been addressed to our Board Consultant’s approval and
rescheduled for hearing.

Motion by Holly Hughes, seconded by Janet Kern, to accept the recommendation of
completeness for Application # 403-19, Center SA, LLC. Motion carried 2-0, 0 abstentions.

Application Hearing
Application # 410-20 - Krysztof Swiech
Please refer to the attached transcript.

Motion by Scott Kominkiwiecz, seconded by Holly Hughes to approve the Site Plan portion of
the application subject to all the testimony and all conditions outlined in the letters from AJV
Engineering, Inc. dated July 10, 2020.

Application # 406-20 - Baljinder Singh
Following recent correspondence, in a letter from James E. Stahl, Esq. dated July 8, 2020, and a

letter from Amy Russo Planning Board Secretary dated August 5, 2020, the applicant Baljinder
Singh failed to submit the required documents and fees in a timely matter. Recommendation
to dismiss this application without prejudice.

Motion by Holly Hughes, seconded by Jorge Gonzales-Gomez 8-0, 0 abstentions to dismiss
without prejudice.

Correspondence

Application #408-20 — Brian Vallee, Ken Barton, & Charnie Stein
Mr. Salvatore Alfieri Esq., requested that the application be carried
to September 23, 2020, meeting.

Motion by Janet Kern, seconded by Jorge Gonzales-Gomez. All in favor.

Motion by Janet Kern, seconded by George Baranowski to open the public portion of the
meeting. With no public present to speak, Chairwoman Szaro asked for a motion to close the
public meeting.

Motion by Holly Hughes, seconded by George Baranowski to close the public portion of the
meeting.



Chairwoman Szaro announced that the next virtually scheduled meeting would be held on
Wednesday, September 23, 2020, at 7:00 pm.

Motion by Janet Kern, seconded by George Baranowski, to adjourn. All in favor.
Respectfully submitted,

Amy Russo

Planning Board Secretary

Minutes Approved on September 23, 2020
Amended and Approved on November 19, 2020
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G TY OF SQUTH AVBOY
PLANNI NG ZONI NG BOARD
APPLI CATI ON NO. 410-20

- - - - - - - - - - - 4 -4 -2 - - - -X

Applicant: Krysztof Sw ech :

114 David Street . August 26, 2020
Bl ock 39, Lot 9 : 7:10 p. m

Bul k Vari ance :

Dat e deened conplete: 07/22/2020 :

- - - - - - - - - - - 4 -4 -2 - - - -X

MEETI NG CONDUCTED BY WAY CF GO TO MEETI NG

BEFORE

Chai rwoman Mary Szaro

Vice Chair Scott Kom nkiew cz
Ceor ge Bar anowski

Hol | y Hughes

Thomas Kel |y

Janet Kern

Jorge Gonzal ez, 1st Alternate
Steven G arratano, 2nd Alternate

ALSO PRESENT:

Jason Val etutto, PP
Any Russo, Board Secretary

PHYLLIS T. LEWS
CERTI FI ED COURT REPORTER
CERTI FI ED REALTI ME COURT REPORTER
(732) 735- 4522



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

APPEARANCES

BORRUS, GOLDI N, FOCLEY,

VI GNUCLO  HYMAN & STAHL, PC

2875 US H ghway 1

North Brunswi ck, New Jersey 08901
732-422-1000

BY: JAMES E. STAHL, ESQ
Attorneys for the Board

THOVAS E. DOMWNS, |V, ESQ
415 Main Street

Sout h Anboy, New Jesey 08879
732-679-5600

Attorney for the Applicant.
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W TNESS

John J. Loui s Pl oskonka

Janmes W Higgins

NDEX

PACGE

22
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CHAIl RWOVAN SZARO. Ckay. The next
application is 410-20, Krystof Swi ech. Just let ne
see, if | didn't say that right, 114 David Street.

M . Downs, you have the floor.

THE REPORTER. Tom you have your
m cr ophone of f.

CHAl RMOVAN SZARO. W can't hear you,
Tom Put your -- Tom you're on nute.

MR DOMS: | am Here we go. Can you
hear nme now?

CHAl RMOVAN SZARO.  Yes, that is great.

MR. DOMWNS: Ckay, good.

This is an application for M. Sw ech
who is a resident of Illinois, who is a builder out
there, to denolish the present house on the |ocation
of 114 David Street, which was a Sandy Storm damage,
and he purchased at a tax sale, foreclosure sale
| ast year fromthe city.

He proposes to replace the building by
nmovi ng the building back a substantial distance, not
the full 25 feet off the street, but a substantial
di stance, which wll permt cars to have off-street
parking on the site, as well as underneath, because
it isinaflood plain, and it has to be elevated to

have a two-car garage at the ground floor, so he
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wi |l have four off-street parking places nore or
| ess.

| am going to have M. John Pl oskonka,
our engi neer, discuss the flood plain |ayout plan
(audi o breaks up) our planner as to the efficacy of
t he pl anni ng perspective as to what is going on.

| do have in ny office the real estate
agent who wll be nmarketing the property, and this
property will be built and sold on the residenti al
mar ket as a one-famly hone. And | al so have the
Jersey representative of M. Swi ech, Pawel Tym nsky,
who will be the building contractor of the buil ding.

| will note according to Ms. Beata
Prusakowski and M. Tym nsky that the interior of
the building presently is five -- five bedroons.
They're | ooking to put a four-bedroomhone inits
pl ace, which should be a de-intensification of the
present use of the property fromwhat -- from what
they see fromthe inside. They haven't checked the
tax rolls to see what it is listed at, but from
their -- their indication, this is a house -- a
typical railroad flat down bel ow the tracks, that as
the famly gathered, this was the Leonard famly
honmestead |i ke many, many years ago, and as the

fam |y expanded, they just kept building to the back
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of the yard.

So | think for the first person that we
woul d put on, | would ask M. Ploskonka, if he can
gi ve you the engineering detail on the site and what
we are | ooking to do.

MR. STAHL: Tom before you go any
further, Anmy, we have received the affidavit of
mai ling and the affidavit of publication with
regards to the required notice?

M5. RUSSO  Yes.

MR. STAHL: Al right. Everything is
in order?

M5. RUSSO  Yes.

MR. STAHL: Al right. Tom go right
ahead.

MR. DOMNS: John, you are up.

MR. PLOSKONKA: To be sworn?

THE REPORTER: Ckay. Could you --

CHAl RMOVAN SZARO: Do we have to
qualify M. Ploskonka?

| know you' ve been with us many a tine,
but Ji nf?

MR. PLOSKONA: My nane is John J. Louis
Pl oskonka, P-1|-0-s-k-0-n-k-a, professional engineer,

Manal apan, New Jersey. |'ve been in the (audio
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breaks up) for 50 years. | have been throughout
Sout h Anboy, M ddl esex, Monnouth and Ccean County.

MR. STAHL: Al right. M. Ploskonka,
before you're qualified, do you swear or affirmthat
the testinony that you are about to give here is the
truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth,
so hel p you God?

THE WTNESS: | do.

J OHN J. LOUI S PLOSKONKA,
havi ng been duly sworn, testified as foll ows:

CHAl RMOVAN SZARO. Before you start,
does the Board have any concerns about --

MR. STAHL: Al right --

(Audi o breaks up)

CHAl RMOVAN SZARO. -- the (audi o breaks
up) of M. Ploskonka?

Ckay. Thank you.

MR. STAHL: Al right.

M. Ploskonka will be qualified based
upon his experience before this Board as a New
Jersey |icensed engi neer and as an expert in site
engi neeri ng.

MR. DOMNS: | do have one -- one -- one
point of clarification, Chairnman.

| received two review letters. One
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John J. Louis Pl oskonka

from Jason, dated July 10, which |I received
yesterday, and one from Angel o, dated August the
7t h.
It is ny understanding in speaking to
the Valetutto firm that they are going to be
wor king off of Jason's review |letter of July 10th.
| just want to clarify that at the present tine.
CHAIl RWOVAN SZARO.  Thank you.
Jason, can you confirmthat?
MR. J. VALETUTTO Yes. W are using
the July 10th letter only. He can conpletely
di sregard the August letter
Al so, one change has been -- 1'Il| put
this out there for you guys -- one change from ny
| etter has been brought to our attention. There is
no |l onger a use variance on this application. It
has been proven through the Minicipal Land Use Law
that the density on the single-famly hone in a
st andal one property, which this is, does not count
as a use variance. However, because it is -- the
density is aline itemin the town hall schedule, it
will be considered as a full variance.
MR. DOMNS: And | -- | agree with that.
John, can you descri be the present --

what the present use on the property is?
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John J. Louis Pl oskonka

THE WTNESS: Yes. There is an
existing single-famly hone right next to the road
on the property and off a couple of inches fromthe
| eft property line as you face the house fromthe
street. It is in bad shape. | was there. It is
going to be renoved and replaced with a slightly
| arger hone that would be a single-famly hone on
the sane property, and it would be a three-story
hone as opposed to the two-story hone. Because of
the flood elevation, we're going to have the first
fl oor about 9 feet above Elevation 11, which is the
flood elevation that's been determned on this site.

There are six bulk variances required.
Jason, that was going to be seven with the line item
use variance, and the other variances are the
mnimum |l ot area, the mninmumlot wdth, which are
preexi sting because of the size on the 25 by a
hundred foot |ot.

And then there is a mninmumfront yard
set back, which is now zero, would be nmade to be 18
feet to allow for cars to park in front as well as
cars in the -- the cars in the garage.

One side yard has been taken from a
coupl e of inches to five feet, and a conbined |ot --

conbi ned side yards are 6.1, so there would be
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John J. Louis Pl oskonka 10

anot her vari ance, because it should be 10. The
house is a little bit bigger.

So then we are naking the variances a
little bit less with the side yard on the one side
and the -- the -- of a bulk variance on set back.

CHAIl RWOVAN SZARO.  So, M. Pl oskonka,
is that a total of seven you said?

THE WTNESS: There are seven
variances. There is also a variance for the height,
which is three stories versus two and a hal f
stories, and there was one bul k vari ance that was
el i mnated, which was the street parking. The
street parking is no |onger a variance.

Jason, did that report that | | ooked at
and in looking at his comments, | basically can say
everything he has asked for, we are going to conply
with. So on his site plan Sheet 1 in his coments,
one through five, we will conply.

On Sheets 1 through 11, A through G we
will conply.

And Tomnade it a point before that the
house is for sale, not for rent, and it is going to
be on the real estate market.

| think that covers everything that was

in Jason's letter, and | would defer to M. Higgins
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John J. Louis Pl oskonka 11

as the planner --

MR. DOMS: Can | ask you one -- John
can | ask you a question?

If there's -- if Jason refers to the
need -- to address the need to denolish the
property, can you elaborate on that a little bit?

THE WTNESS: The house is in extrenely
bad condition because of Sandy, and in its current
condition, there is no way to save that house. You
got to start fromscratch, and this would be a major
i nprovenent on the street where you have the house.
The house is existing at ground level in the flood
zone, and the new house above ground | evel outside
the fl ood zone.

MR. DOMS: Thank you.

MR. KELLY: Hey, Jason, what is the
ordi nance change after Sandy?

(Audi o breaks up) that the first fl oor
used for garage and storage purposes only was not to
be considered a story?

MR. J. VALETUTTO | don't recall that
bei ng changed, but | could be -- ny nenory could be
W ong.

MR. KELLY: You may have to | ook at

t hat because that may not be a vari ance.
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John J. Louis Pl oskonka

THE WTNESS: Just to add to that, the
bui | ding height is 34.3 feet, where the building
hei ght requirenent is 35, so we are under the height
requirenent, but we do have a three-story as
depicted with the basenent area, with the garage
fl oor area.

CHAl RMOVAN SZARO. I'msorry. Can |
just ask, | didn't recogni ze who was speaki ng.

THE W TNESS: John Pl oskonka

CHAl RMOVAN SZARO:  No. Wio el se? Was
t here sonebody el se?

MR. KELLY: Yeah, Tom Kel ly.

(Audi o interference)

CHAIl RWOVAN SZARO.  All right, Tom
Don't worry. Thank you for joining.

MR. KELLY: Ckay.

(Laught er)

THE REPORTER |'msorry. W is
speaki ng anyway?

This is the court reporter. Who was
speaki ng?

MR. KELLY: Tom Kel ly.

THE REPORTER  Tom Kel | y.

MR. STAHL: At any rate that woul d be

hel pful because we are (indiscernible) anyway, when

12
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John J. Louis Pl oskonka 13

soneone is going to speak, just say like, you know,
Kelly, and then recite what you have to. That's
mai nl y because of the court reporter. Except Mary,
she's in the mddle, so everyone will know who is
tal king, and when Tom Downs is tal king, we know,

| f soneone were to junp in |ike Jason,
or Steve or soneone, just say, you know, |ast nane,
SO we have it.

Thank you.

MR. DOMS: Thank you.

MR. KELLY: | think, Jason, we are
going to have to research that because | thought
that the ordinance that permtted the reconstruction
like to |1 ke al so addressed the fact that because
FEMA and the Uniform Construction Code got together
it did not consider that a story because it is not
habi tabl e, that it was not going to be considered
habi t abl e according to our ordinance either.

MR. J. VALETUTTO  Ckay.

MR. KELLY: So we can always -- we can
take a ook at it.

MR. DOMNS:. Does anyone have -- do any
menbers of the Board have questions for M.

Pl oskonka?

MR. J. VALETUTTO | just want to say
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John J. Louis Pl oskonka 14

during the entire testinony, ny screen was frozen,
and now I'mon ny phone, so | didn't (audi o breaks

up) that went on, other than they were saying that

there were seven bul k variances. | actually count
ei ght.

MR. STAHL: That's correct. | thought
there was six. JimStahl here. | thought there was

si x variances, one, two, three, four, five, six.
One elimnated the street parking --

(Audi o interference)

MR. STAHL: Stahl here.

John, why you don't just in one mnute
give a recap to Jason including that you are
accepting all of the terns of his review letter?

MR. J. VALETUTTO Val etutto here.

CHAl RMOVAN SZARO. Can | ask everyone
to put their -- if everyone puts their phones or
their conputers on nute, please? It's getting a
little squeaky in the background.

THE W TNESS: Just to repeat, | have
Si X vari ances.

THE REPORTER. |I'msorry. Wwo is this
that's tal king?

THE W TNESS: John Pl oskonka, the

engi neer, for the record.
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John J. Louis Pl oskonka 15

| have six variances conmng into
tonight's neeting, and there was a question of
whet her or not the three-story was a vari ance or
not, and then Jason -- Jason added the fact that
there is a density variance, which would becone a
bul k variance based on the | ayout of any ordi nance.

So that takes us back to seven, if you
count the three-story building, and they are -- the
| ot area is 5,000 required, as existing 20 by a
hundred. The lot width is 50 required. It's 25
feet. The front setback of the house that's there
is zero. W are going to have 18 feet, but 25 is
required.

The side yards for the house are
five -- five for side, and ten total, and we w ||
now go from four inches to seven, alnost eight feet,
and the other one will be 6.7 instead of 10, so that
is a variance. And the | ot coverage is 46.60 feet,
where 25 is allowed and the three stories.

So those are the six variances plus
Jason's for the line itemfor density.

CHAIl RWOVAN SZARO.  Thank you, M.
Pl oskonka.

Jason, any other questions or --

MR. J. VALETUTTG Yeah, because --



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

John J. Louis Pl oskonka 16

this is Valetutto.

On the plan, | see the side yard as
being | abeled three feet, not five feet, so |
believe that is where the variance -- that's the
extra variance | call out that you are testifying
towards, unless there was a change to the plans that
| reviewed in accordance to this letter, its |abel
is three feet -- three foot side yard.

MR. J. VALETUTTO The side yard -- the
exi sting side yard is only about four inches, and
the next side yard is now shown as 7.96 feet.

The plans | have, dated June 2nd (audio
breaks up) shows a side yard of three feet on one
side and (audi o breaks up) 117 on the other side,
which I mght pull down as --

THE W TNESS: You are correct, Jason
(Audi o breaks up) strai ght down one side, the 3.17,
a total of 6.17, too, so it is a variance for the 3
point -- and for total side yard, yes, you're
correct.

MR. J. VALETUTTO So we have eight
vari ances, eight bulk variances total with the
possibility that the -- (audio breaks up) not be
considered a variance, so it could possibly be

seven.
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Hughes.

Loui s Pl oskonka

17

M5. HUGHES: Jason, this is Holly

So | just did a code search for the

reconstruction standards after Sandy, and our code

does say that the maxi mum hei ght of the new or

rebuilt structure shal

be either code zoning height

restriction or the structures pre-storm hei ght

i ncreased by the additional height required to

conply with any federal

el evati ons, whichever is greater.

So if

or state first fl oor

it was 30 feet in height

pre-storm and they are saying, you know, federal

standards, state standards say it has to be eight

feet, then it would be 38 total.

MR. J.

VALETUTTO.  Ckay.

That hel ps us

in regards to feet height, but not in regards to

story height under the city considers the garage

area, which i

referring to,

preexi sting as presently on site.

S not

living space as a floor

VR. DOMNS: Tom Downs.

John,

of the variances that we are

there is a nunber of themthat are

|s that correct?

THE W TNESS: Yeah. The first two |

mentioned, the lot area and ot width are

preexi sti ng.

That

is a sizable lot.

You can't
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John J. Louis Pl oskonka 18

choose that because you don't have anywhere to go
wi th expanding the ot with houses on both sides.

MR. DOMS: Anyone el se have any
gquestions for M. Pl oskonka?

MR. KELLY: This is TomKelly here.

M. Pl oskonka, we have a garage fl oor
proposed el evati on of 10.57

Hey, Tom |'msorry, M. Downs, are you
going to have the architect testify?

MR. DOMS: No

MR, KELLY: Ckay. So | amgoing to
maybe propose this to M. Ploskonka. |[|'mnot sure
i f he knows.

So we have a proposed garage fl oor
el evation of 10.57. W have a required BFE or base
flood elevation of 11. So that is one, is the
requi renment according to the regul ation.

| s the mechani cal room going to be
stepped up, or is it going to be at the garage
el evation of 10.57?

THE WTNESS: It should be (audio
breaks up).

MR. KELLY: And one other question real
qui ck woul d be the | ocation of the condensing unit

that al so needs to be 11 plus 1.
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John J. Louis Pl oskonka 19

|"msorry. Go ahead.

THE WTNESS: The answer woul d be that
t he condensing unit and any controls would be raised
to 11.1.

MR. KELLY: It is not 11.1, sir. It's
11 plus one foot.

THE WTNESS: 11 -- yes, 11 plus 1 --

MR. KELLY: Yeah. So it would actually
be 12 foot, which neans that the nechanical room as
it is proposed, if it's not elevated, is going to be
too | ow.

MR. DOMS: To answer M. Kelly, | have
the builder, the builder here, Tom that is going to
be building, and he indicates it will be 12 feet.

MR. KELLY: Ckay. Al right. So
everything --

MR. DOMNS: We will nmake that -- we
w |l nmake sure that that change is nade in the
archi tectural plans.

MR. KELLY: Ckay. | nean, everything
else will be code fromflood venting, so on and so
forth, but we just need to nmake sure we know t hat
all of that needs to be up including the condensing
unit.

MR. DOMWNS:. Agreed.
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John J. Louis Pl oskonka 20

CHAl RMOVAN SZARO. Jorge Gonzal ez, did
you have a question?

MR. GONZALEZ: Yeah, Tom | don't know
if this is what -- Jorge Gonzalez -- | don't know if
this is what you covered, Tom

The fl ood vents on the side of the
house at the first level, like the other houses are
close to them that is not depicted on the plans
correct, Ton®?

MR. KELLY: No, that's -- you know
what ? You are right, Tom

What | was saying -- I'msorry, this is
TomKelly. Wat | was saying is a lot of that stuff
was catchi ng code revi ew because flood venting, the
closets that are depicted in the foyer, they are all
i ssues, but we can grab that when we do plan review
for code conpliance.

| just wanted to nmake sure that M.

Pl oskonka was aware that it needed to be a plus 1
so everything that is proposed on the garage fl at
needs to cone up at least -- you are at 10.07, so it
needs to go up a foot -- a foot, and one point 43,
three feet it needs to cone up.

MR. GONZALEZ: Okay. Thank you.

| just did not see the pictures --



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

anything depicted with the flood vents on the side.

Thank you.

MR. KELLY: Yeah, there's not.

MR. GONZALEZ: But it is necessary.
MR. KELLY: Yes, sir.

MR. GONZALEZ: Thank you.

3

DOMNS: Does anyone el se have

gquestions for M. Pl oskonka?

If not, I will nove on to M. Hi ggins.

MR. J. VALETUTTO | have -- this is
Val et utto.

| don't know if the test -- the two

testinony itens in ny report were touched upon when
| was -- will the owner reside in the hone or wll
the property be rental or for sale?

MR. DOMWNS: They nentioned (audio
breaks up) we originally were on, that the property
is going to be for sale. It is not going to be
owner -occupied or rental. It is going to be put on
the open real estate nmarket.

MR. J. VALETUTTO  Ckay.

MR. DOMS: Obviously the existing
structure, as M. Ploskonka indicated, will have to
be denvol i shed because of the condition, because of

t he Sandy danaged property.

21
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Does that deal with your inquiry?

MR. J. VALETUTTO  Yeah. Just like |
said, | was frozen. | didn't hear any of that. I
just wanted to be sure --

MR. DOMS: Ckay. Al right.

Thank you.

Anybody else for M. Ploskonka?

| f not, thank you, John.

W wll go on to M. Hi ggins.

Jim open up. Turn your M ke on.

MR. STAHL: Al right. M. Hi ggins,
rai se your right hand.

In this matter do you swear the
testinony you are about to give is the truth, the
whol e truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you

God?

22

CHAIl RWOVAN SZARO. M. Higgins, you are

on mute. M. H ggins, you are on nmute.

MR. STAHL: Audi o, audio.

MR. H GA NS: Yes.

CHAIl RWOVAN SZARO.  There you go.
JANES W HI GGI NS, having been duly
sworn, testified as foll ows:

MR. STAHL: Pl ease state your nane and

spell your last nane, sir.
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THE W TNESS:. Janes W Hi ggins,
Hi-g-g-i-n-s.
MR. STAHL: Pl ease give us your

pr of essi onal backgr ound.

THE WTNESS: | ama |icensed
prof essional planner in the state. 1've been
Iicensed for over 40 years. | have testified as an

expert in the field of planning on a nunber of
occasions, as well as various throughout the State
of New Jersey.

| have been a planning consultant for
at least 12 New Jersey nunicipalities over the
years, and | have been accepted by the Superi or
Court including the State Suprene Court as an expert
in the field of planning.

CHAIl RWOVAN SZARO.  Thank you, M.
Hi ggi ns.

Does the Board have any concerns on the
applicant's credibility (audio breaks up)?

Ckay. Thank you, M. Hi ggins.

THE WTNESS: Okay. |I'mgoing to
descri be the site and describe the variances --

THE REPORTER |'msorry, M. Higgins.
Coul d you start over again, because there's sone

ki nd of feedback going on?
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This is the court reporter.

CHAl RMOVAN SZARO. Can everybody el se
nmut e besi des M. Hi ggins?

MR. DOMS: And, Jim swear M. Hi ggins
in. He hasn't been sworn yet.

MR. STAHL: He was.

THE WTNESS: Yeah, | was sworn.

MR. STAHL: Did we wake you?

MR. DOMS: It's okay.

(Laught er)

THE W TNESS: Ckay.

VWhat | will do is rather than go
describe the site and all of the variances, they
have been described in detail by M. Ploskonka, so |
will goright into the reasons for the granting of
t he variances that are being requested, and | think
there are both C(1) and C(2) reasons for the
granting of the variance.

The C(1) clearly details the -- deals
with the small size of the site, and the fact that
the site is undersized in ternms of width and in
terns of area. The ordinance requires 5,000 square
feet and a 50 foot width, and the site is 25 foot in
wi dth, and 2,500 square feet in area, and that small

size of the site drives the other vari ances
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including the density variance. You can't build on
this lot a house without having a density that is
bei ng requested because of the snmall size of the
site.

| think the variance for the undersized
nature of the site and for the density are basically
one in the sane, just two different ways of
descri bing the sane situation and the sane vari ance.

The variances for the side yard
setbacks | think are also driven by the undersized
nature of the site, specifically the narrow w dth of
the site.

| f you were to put a house on this site
that conformed with the five foot side yard setbacks
on either side and the ten foot total, you would
only have a 15-foot w de house, which is very narrow
and out of character with the area. So | think what
is being proposed here in terns of the setbacks is
in character with the area.

The very, very small existing side yard
setback of |ess than a foot has been elimnated, and
you have essentially three feet on each side, which
is a much better situation than currently exists
NOW.

And the front yard setback, by noving
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t he house back 18 feet or the existing setback in
the front of the lot is now zero feet. That allows
not only for the garage and where two cars could be
housed in the garage, but it also allows for a
driveway and cars to be parked in the driveway, so
think that is a significant inprovenent.

And | think to nove the house back 25
feet, which would conformw th the ordi nance,
woul dn't gain you anything, and it actually makes
you | ose sone of the rear yard.

The ot her houses on either side are all
set back, just about right on the front property
line, so this house would be set back further than
any other house in the imediate vicinity of the
site.

Wth regard to the variance for |ot
coverage, again, that is driven by the fact that the
site is grossly undersized. It is 50 percent of
what is permtted by the -- what is required by the
or di nance.

In order to have a reasonably sized
house on the lot, you would need to have a house
that did exceed the ordi nance requirenent for
bui | di ng coverage because that really is based on a

5,000 square foot Iot, not on a 2500 square foot
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| ot.

If there is a variance for nunber of
stories that is necessary, it is ny opinion that
that variance can be granted. | think it is
essential because of the flood el evation regul ations
that are in place, you cannot build a two-story
house and have two habitable stories.

This allows you to have two habitable
stories above the first level of the house, which is
not habitable, and | think that is a safety
consi deration and al so a consideration to having a
house that is nore in character with the area and a
house that is nore livable than having a very smal
house with either very snmall bedroons or basically a
one- bedroom house, which again would not be
consistent with what is in the area.

So when | |l ook at these, | think
they're C(1) and C(2) criteria that this application
fits. | think there is substantial benefits to the
granting of the variances, and | don't see any
substantial detrinent. For those reasons, | think
the variances can be granted.

MR. STAHL: Ms. Chairwoman, may | ask a
coupl e of questions?

cHAl RMOVAN SZARO.  Yes. But first, |
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would like to just correct nyself, because | neant
to say the "credentials" of M. Hi ggins. That may
not be "credibility," so, yes, please go ahead, Jim

(Laught er)

MR. STAHL: M. Higgins, | don't know
whet her M. Pl oskonka related it, but howis the
size, a square footage of this house being
i ncreased, the new house?

THE WTNESS: Yeah. | do have that in
my outline. Let me see if | can find it.

It is being increased by about 150
square feet | believe. Let ne just see.

(Audi o breaks up)

Yeah. The proposed buil di ng coverage
is 1,167 square feet, where as the existing is 945
square feet, so it is being -- the increase i the
bui | ding coverage is being increased by a little
over 200 square feet.

And what woul d be permtted by the
ordinance, if this was a 5,000 square foot |ot would
be 1,250 square feet or approximtely 90 square feet
nore than what the applicant is proposing.

So this isn't a situation where the
applicant is getting greedy. | think he's trying to

put a house in that's consistent with what woul d be
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permtted in the zone and trying to deal wth the
undersi zed nature of the lot at the sane tine.

MR. STAHL: Thank you.

CHAl RWOVAN SZARO.  Any ot her questions
for M. Hi ggins?

MR. KELLY: M. Higgins, this is Tom
Kelly. I'msorry. | had the conputer on nute.

Can you just speak to the -- and we are
going to have to get clarification, but the
two-story, three-story, the building as it exists
now is a two-story building, correct?

THE WTNESS: That is correct.

(Audi o breaks up)

THE REPORTER: M. Hi ggins, your voice
is breaking up. M. Higgins?

THE WTNESS: M voice is breaking up?

THE REPORTER:  Yes.

THE WTNESS: Okay. |Is that better?

THE REPORTER:  Yes.

THE W TNESS:. kay.

Yeah. The building is two stories now,
but it is two habitable stories, and the first floor
according to the current FEMA regul ati ons woul d not
be habitable, so what's being proposed here is

essentially raising the building up, creating a non
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habitable first level, and then two stories above
that that are habitable. So it is consistent -- in
terns of the habitable stories, it's consistent with
what exists there nowand it's a --

MR. KELLY: | do totally understand
that. However, the BFE plus 1 is only a 12. Your
garage is at a 10.57, so really all we need to raise
this in order to be flood plain conpliant is
basically 1.43.

(Audi o breaks up)

THE WTNESS:. But then you --

(Audi o breaks up)

MR. STAHL: Stop. Hold it. Stop
Hold it. [It's Stahl here.

Tom you are -- you are great, and we
m ss you, but could you explain to the Board the
nunbers you are using and what the bottomline is,
you know, 1.3, is it feet, is it percentage?

Just explain to the Board what Super
Storm Sandy and FEMA require in |ayman terns.

MR. KELLY: Oh, I'msorry, M. Stahl.
Yes, | wll.

MR. STAHL: Don't be sorry.

MR. KELLY: So the proposed -- the

proposed garage door elevation is proposed at
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basically 10 and a half feet above sea level. The
FEMA gui delines require the base flood el evation,
which is the lowest floor plus 1, so what needs to
have to happen is the building has to be built at
basically 12 feet above sea level. They are
proposing the first habitable floor to be 19.7 feet
above sea level. So basically they are adding
another 7.7 feet above what is required, and that is
really what is putting it into the third story.

Correct, M. Valetutto?

MR. J. VALETUTTO Well, you are
tal ki ng about height in feet. | don't think height
in feet is defined by -- or the height in stories is
defined by the feet, right?

MR. KELLY: No, but I'm--

MR. J. VALETUTTO It is defined by
like you said habitable area. And is the garage
considered a habitable area? It is not a living
space. It is a house for a car.

MR. KELLY: It is not. Correct. It is
not habitable --

MR. J. VALETUTITO Right.

MR. KELLY: -- and with the garage and
storage, that is one thing. However, and we need to

verify this, and that is why we may have to wait to
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see what the ordi nance was changed to.

| f one of the variances is a third
story because the ordi nance wasn't changed to
elimnate the habitable or non habitability of the
first floor |evel because of FEMA guidelines, then
the floor can't be used as habitabl e space because
it is below the base flood elevation. This hone
really only needs to be raised a foot and a hal f.
It doesn't have to be raised 7 feet.

| understand why they are raising it,
to get the garage. But in all honesty, it really
only has to be raised above grade like a foot and a
hal f, two feet.

THE WTNESS: This is JimHi ggins

| think I can address that for the
Board, and | don't disagree with M. Kelly, but I
think there are positive planning reasons for doing
what the applicant is doing because | think the
garage is a substantial benefit, and given the fact
that nost of the other properties on this street
don't have off-street parking, and so the parKking
all has to be on the street.

In this instance the applicant is
proposing to put a garage in, not only to have a

garage, but also to have a driveway that can al so
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accommodat e vehicles, so it is a substantial benefit
in nmy opinion, and the fact that while, yes, there
are three stories, the height of the building does
not exceed what woul d ot herwi se be permtted by the
ordi nance, whether that's 35 feet or 38 feet, it is
bel ow 35 feet.

So in terns of having any negative
i npacts, | don't think there are any negative
i npacts fromgranting the application as proposed,
and | think there is a substantial benefit. So I
think that does fall under the C(2) category of
granting the variance.

M5. HUGHES: This is Holly Hughes.

| have a question, because |'ve, you
know, | have been on the Planning Board for a while,
but not imediately after Hurricane Sandy, and it
| ooks |i ke the house directly next door towards the
wat er has been raised or is in the process of being
raised to a third floor, a three-story buil ding.

THE WTNESS: This is M. Higgins

And in ny visiting the site, |
recogni zed that also. That house has been rai sed.

MS. HUGHES: So ny question to the
Board, has that property been reviewed in a simlar

manner that we are review ng right now, because | am
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just | ooking, and, you know, I amnot on site, but
there doesn't seemto be that nuch of an el evation
change that we would have all owed a one-story
increase wth the one, wi thout these sane
conversations taking place.

CHAIl RWOVAN SZARO. | don't believe that
property cane before us, Holly.

Tom you are on nute.

MR. J. VALETUTTO | don't recall, the
properties on either side may have been --

THE REPORTER |'msorry. W is
speaki ng?

MR. J. VALETUTTO  -- probably could
build in the sane footprint and get out of the FEMA
el evation, | don't know if Tom has any recollection
of that. But on the survey it shows both -- both
adj oi ning properties are existing three-story
dwel I'i ngs.

MR. STAHL: Tom Downs, | think was
gesticulating. D d you have sonething to say?

MR. DOMS: | was having a di scussion
wth ny real estate agent. He was show ng ne a
pi cture of the house that this use referred to,
whi ch shows that it is three stories, and it is at

the peak, the third story at the top
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M5, HUGHES: And in 2013, it was not.
It was a two-story buil ding.

MR. KELLY: Hey, Jay -- hey, Jin?

| think we can nove forward with this,
but I think what we really need to do is revisit the
ordi nance and where the ordi nance adopti on stands
now, and | amreferencing the ordinance that was
adopted by the Council directly after Super Storm
Sandy, because to the best of ny recoll ection what
happened is the ordi nance permtted honmes to be
reconstructed -- reconstructed, sorry, like to like,
on the existing footprint as long as they were able
to be elevated to be flood plain conpliant, and |
think we can look at that -- we can currently nove
forward with the hearing, but | think we may have
to -- before we go to a vote, we nmay have to | ook at
that ordinance to see how it works in with this
application, because it may work in the applicant's
favor.

MR. STAHL: Well, again, | amjust
trying to focus, Tom

How -- | mean, in order for variances
with regard to, you know, density and the side
yards, front yards -- not front yards, but whatever,

what is that going to tell us?
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What is the ordinance going to tell us
that will help us?

MR. KELLY: It may -- it may elimnate
one of the variances, and specifically the last Iine
itemin the bulk variance list, it may not be
considered a story, if the ordi nance was changed the
way that | believe it may have been changed, which
may el i m nate another vari ance.

M5. HUGHES: Tom this is Holly Hughes
agai n.

| read that. | looked it up online and
| read it out loud Iike 20 m nutes ago.

| believe the way it is witten reads
t hat whatever the, you know, conpliance with FEVMA,
federal, state regulation, you can increase the
hei ght of the house. If it was 30 feet before
Sandy, it can be 30 feet plus whatever you need it
to be -- to be, you know -- if it is 8 feet that
they need to go up, then the house can be 38 feet
tall

But the ordinance al so tal ks about it
allow ng to be noved off the footprint of the
exi sting house as long as it is decreasing the
amount of variances needed.

MR. KELLY: | think it also went on to
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identify that the non habitable area downstairs was

not to be considered a story, because if it was only
the requirenent to get a bul k FEMA gui delines or the
FEMA BFE, all we are looking at for this house is a

two foot increase above grade.

MR. STAHL: Madanm Chai rworman, the Board
menber's son has his hand up.

CHAIl RWOVAN SZARO | know.

Scott?

MR. KOM NKI EW CZ: Okay. For the sake
of the neeting and for the sake of the possible
approval, if we approve all of the variances, and if
it is deened later that a variance was not
necessary, would that inpact the approval of this
application or not?

MR. STAHL: | would take the position
that it does not. |If you were adding a variance, it
woul d. But if you are deleting a variance, which
you al ready granted, then it has no inpact, if
that's what (audi o breaks up).

MR. KOM NKI EW CZ:  Yeah.

So if I amnot m staken, then what we
are arguing about is should there be | ess vari ances,
unl ess | got that w ong.

MR. STAHL: Stahl, Stahl here.
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Tom what is your answer on that one?

MR. KELLY: Sorry, sorry. | was on
mute. | apol ogi ze.

Yeah, basically -- basically what it
is, is it comes down to: Does the ordinance relieve
them of this extra variance because the ordi nance
permts the additional story so long as it is deened
to be non habitable.

CHAl RAOVAN SZARO:  If | may -- if | may
t hen, perhaps we can nove forward wth the thought
that in followup, if it is not needed, then it is
not needed?

MR. KELLY: Sure. | totally agree.
That was ny point.

Thank you.

CHAl RWMOVBN SZARO.  Ckay. Thank you,

al |

Any ot her questions? | think we are
still on M. Hi ggins.

MR. STAHL: | think it is back to M.
Downs.

MR. DOMNS: That is all -- | think that
is all | would need for testinony at this point

based upon the presentation so far.

Clearly this wll be an increase in tax
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ratable for the city. You are going to get rid of a
building that is decrepit is being kind to it, and
putting sonething nore nodern, and | think all and
all, it would be an asset to the town, and request
that you -- that you grant the variance as presented
to the Board.

CHAIl RWOVAN SZARO.  Thank you.

Are there any ot her questions or
coments fromthe Board before we open the neeting
up to the public?

Okay. At this tinme | would Iike to ask
for a notion to open the neeting up to the public.

M5. KERN: Moti on.

CHAIl RWOVAN SZARO.  Thank you.

Do | have a second?

THE REPORTER. |I'msorry. Wo said the
noti on?
MR. KOM NKI EW CZ:  Second.
CHAl RMOVAN SZARO:  That was Janet Kern
THE REPORTER. And who was the second?
CHAIl RWOVAN SZARO.  We're working on
t hat .

MR. KOM NKI EW CZ: Second.
CHAl RMOVAN SZARO  Scott Kom nkewi cz.

THE REPORTER:  Thank you.
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CHAl RWOVAN SZARO. Ckay. At this tinme
| would like to open it up.

| s there anybody fromthe public who
would like to speak on this application?

One nore tinme, anyone fromthe public?

kay. Wth that, do | have a notion to
close this session to the public?

MR. GONZALEZ: Jorge CGonzal ez

| wll nmake a notion to close the
public.

M5. KERN: Second.

CHAl RMOVAN SZARO. Jorge Gonzal ez, and
| saw Janet Kern as second.

CHAl RMOVAN SZARO. Gkay. Thank you.

M. Downs, anything el se before we take
a vote?

MR. DOMWNS: Madam Chairman, | wll
subm t.

CHAl RAMOMAN SZARO.  Ckay. M. Stahl,
or, Jason, can you help us out just to outline the
conditions, and | believe there are 8 variances?

MR. STAHL: Ckay. | would ask that
Jason list all of the variances that he has that are
bei ng requested, and then to highlight the one

vari ance that may not be a variance, so that we can
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at least identify that before the Board, so then we
don't have to (audi o breaks up).

MR. J. VALETUTTO  Ckay.

CHAIl RWOVAN SZARO. W have the public,
Jim

MR. STAHL: Pardon nme?

Oh, | did already. |1'msorry.

CHAl RWOVAN SZARO.  That is okay.

Jason?

MR. J. VALETUTTO  Everything in
accordance to ny July 10th, 2020 letter would need
to be conplied with. And the variances that are
requested tonight would be for mninum |l ot area,
mnimmlot width, mninmumfront yard setback,

m ni mrum si de yard setback, mninmumtotal side yard
set back, maxi num| ot coverage, maxi num | ot height in
stories and maxi numdwel ling units per acre.

And the variance that is in question is
maxi mum hei ght in stories, whether the city
ordinance wll hold out the garage |evels not being
consi dered a story.

So as of right now the Board woul d be
| ooki ng at eight variances, but it's possible it is
seven variances. But if the Board so grants the

application wth eight variances (audi o breaks up).
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THE REPORTER If it grants it with
seven vari ances, what?

MR. J. VALETUTTO If the application
was -- if there was a reduction in the variances
from8 to 7 variances, the Board already granted for
8 variances, so it would not change the approval --
their approval regardless.

THE REPORTER: Thanks.

CHAl RMOVAN SZARO. Gkay. Thank you,
al |

Thank you, Jason.

Wth that, do | have a notion to
approve the application for 410-20 with the
conditions and variances outlined?

MR. KOM NKIEW CZ: | nove that
Application 410-20 be approved with all applicable
and stated variances grant ed.

CHAIl RWOVAN SZARO.  Thank you.

That was Scott Kom nkiew cz.

And do | have a second?

M5, HUGHES: This is Holly Hughes.

| wll second.

CHAIl RWOVAN SZARO.  Thank you.

MR. STAHL: And if | nmay conmunicate to

t hose, Madamr Chai rwonan, just to be consistent with



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

43

practice, | amassumng that the Board is adopting
this resolution and approving it based on (a) the
condition of the property, (b) the proposed
enhancenent of the property, and (c) the testinony
of M. Higgins that spoke about the hardships
i nvolved in connection with the undersized |lot, the
fact that there was no way to aneliorate those
har dshi ps, and the increase in area was
approxi mately 100 square feet, and that it wll
actually be esthetically nore pleasing. It wll be
a better tax ratable, although we really don't
consider it, and that it will reduce the setback in
the front yard, which wll allow parking in the
driveway and will otherw se be a substantial benefit
to the coomunity, if the Board grants the approval,
and that there were no detrinments, that being
negative inpacts in terns of property val ues or
other inpairnents to the intent and purpose of the
zone pl an.

And those would be the criteria that
t he Board has to consider in deciding whether the
application is granted or not granted, and basically
based al so on the fact that the applicant is
entitled to rebuild on the property at |east the

size of the previous structure that was there.
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St ahl .
gent | enen,
at this.

CHAl RMOVAN SZARO.  Thank you, M.

Could I have a roll call, Any?

> » & » » 3 » » » » » ® » D O

RUSSO.  Steven G arratano?
G ARRATANO  Yes.

RUSSO. Jorge Gonzal ez?
GONZALEZ:  Yes.

RUSSO Hol |y Hughes?
HUGHES:  Yes.

RUSSO  Janet Kern?

KERN:  Yes.

RUSSO  Geor ge Baranowski ?
BARANOABKI :  Yes.

RUSSO  Thomas Kel | y?
KELLY: Yes.

RUSSO  Scott Kom nki ew cz?
KOM NKI EW CZ:  Yes.

RUSSO.  Chai rwoman Szar o?

CHAIl RWOVAN SZARO.  Yes.

Ckay.

VR.

Thank you, all.

DOMWNS: Thank you, | adies and

and have a good evening. | amnot good

(Laught er)

CHAl RMOVAN SZARO We are all
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getting a
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little bit better every day, Tom
Ckay. Thank you, all.
MR. DOMS: Have a good eveni ng.
MR. STAHL: You, too, Tom

(The matter concl uded)
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CERTI FI CATE

|, PHYLLIS T. LEWS, a Certified Court
Reporter, Certified Realtine Court Reporter, and
Notary Public of the State of New Jersey, do hereby
certify that the foregoing is a true and accurate
transcript of the proceedi ngs as taken
stenographically by and before ne at the tine, place

and date hereinbefore set forth via Co-To- Meeti ng.

| DO FURTHER CERTI FY that | am neither
a relative nor enployee nor attorney nor counsel to
any of the parties to this action, and that | am
neither a relative nor enployee of such attorney or
counsel, and that | amnot financially interested in

t he acti on.

s/Phyllis T. Lewis, CCR CRCR

PHYLLIS T. LEWS, C C R Xl 01333 C. R C R 30XR15300
Notary Public of the State of New Jersey

My conm ssion expires 11/5/2020.

This transcript was prepared in accordance with
NJAC 13:43-5.9.



